
 
276 

 

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK 
 

REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT PANEL 
 

Minutes from the Meeting of the Regeneration and Development Panel held 
on Thursday, 12th September, 2024 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber, 

Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Bearshaw (Chair), Blunt, Bubb, Colwell, Crofts,  
Everett (Vice Chair), Lintern, Osborne and Ratcliffe. 

 
OFFICERS: 
Oliver Judges – Executive Director 
Duncan Hall – Assistant Director 
Matthew Henry – Assistant Director 
Jemma Curtis – Regeneration Programmes Manager 
James Grant – Principal Project Manager 
 
BY INVITATION: 
Tom Rudd – BDP 
Ian Parkes – Norfolk County Council 
David Cummings – Norfolk County Council 

 

RD28:   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beal, 
Collingham and Ring. 
 

RD29:   MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: The minutes from the previous meeting were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

RD30:   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There was none. 
 

RD31:   URGENT BUSINESS  
 

There was none. 
 

RD32:   MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34  
 

There was none. 
 

RD33:   CHAIR'S CORRESPONDENCE  
 



 
277 

 

There was none. 
 

RD34:   TRANSPORT INFORMAL WORKING GROUP TERMS OF 
REFERENCE  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
The Panel considered the amended Terms of Reference for the 
Transport Informal Working Group, which had been put forward by the 
Informal Working Group following their first meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: The Panel approved the amended Terms of Reference 
for the Transport Informal Working Group. 
 

RD35:   UPDATE ON DRAFT ECONOMIC STRATEGY FOR WEST NORFOLK  
 

Click here to view the You Tube recording for this item. 
 
Officers presented an update on the Economic Strategy for West 
Norfolk, as included in the Agenda.  It was noted that the Panel had 
received regular updates on progess with the Strategy and this update 
provided information on consultation, engagement and next steps. 
 
Officers set out the holistic, inclusive and sustainable approach that 
would be taken to economic growth which echoed the new 
Government’s approach to Growth Plans.  It was also noted that it 
would be a requirement for Devolution areas to have Growth Plans in 
place. 
 
Information was provided to the Panel on the levers of growth, 
challenges, distinctive sectors and strengths. 
 
The presentation also included information on the vision for 2045 
against the strategic priorities and development of interventions.  The 
Assistant Director explained it was important to act collaboratively and 
get a range of organisations to feed into the process to help shape 
actions and investment opportunities.  The Economic Strategy for West 
Norfolk would be an important document to inform investment 
opportunities and to lever in private sector investment. 
 
The Regeneration Programmes Manager explained that the document 
had been through extensive consultation and engagement across the 
Borough and the Strategy had been developed following feedback and 
data analysis. 
 
The Panel was informed that the next step was to launch the 
consultation document on the draft vision and strategy.  There would 
be two consultations running, a high level one which was open to the 
public and a more detailed one which would be sent to all partners and 
shareholders and would also ask them for a call for projects including 

https://youtu.be/_feK81ZrDAA?t=184
https://youtu.be/_feK81ZrDAA?t=199


 
278 

 

detail of investment plans and ideas on projects to achieve the 
outcomes and address the challenges in the draft scheme. 
 
Following the consultation period the Strategy would go through the 
formal decision making process, likely to come to this Panel in 
November and Cabinet in December 2024. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for the update and invited questions and 
comments from the Panel, as summarised below.  The Chair was 
reassured that a lot of work and effort had been put into bringing this 
strategy forward and thanked all those involved. 
 
Councillor Osborne echoed the Chairs comments and was pleased that 
a lot of engagement had taken place.  He referred to the figures 
relating to housing growth contained in the report and asked if this 
would need to be updated following the change in housing needs 
announced by Government.  The Assistant Director explained that 
work would be carried out to amend and add to the strategy to reflect 
the changes coming in with the new Government.  He also explained 
that it was important not to conflict or predetermine work carried out as 
part of the Local Plan process and explained that work would be 
carried out with the Local Plan Task Group as required. 
 
Councillor Bubb commented that there was currently little incentive for 
new businesses to invest in the area and asked what would be 
provided through the Strategy.  The Chair commented that 
infrastructure was important to make the area attractive to new 
Businesses.  He explained that along with improvements in rail links 
and roads, alternatives to car use needed to be promoted.  He 
suggested a monorail serving Hunstanton, which would take traffic 
from the A149 and also be a unique tourist attraction.  The Assistant 
Director reminded the Panel that creation of the Economic Strategy 
had been carried out in tandem with development of a Countywide 
Economic Strategy which stressed the need for an adequate supply of 
business land and premises and this would also link back to the 
importance of ensuring the adequate allocation of business and 
employment land in the Local Plan. 
 
Councillor Colwell thanked those businesses and organisations that 
had engaged with the process.  He commented that he felt that Brexit 
had had a detrimental impact on labour and trade.  He also referred to 
the opportunities that a Devolution Deal would bring, and noted that the 
current Devolution deal had been paused and hoped that this would 
allow for more exciting opportunities to come forward.  He commented 
that it was important to be bold on what the area wanted to achieve 
from any Devolution Deal and this strategy was an important document 
to help achieve this. 
 
Councillor Colwell referred to the vision which mentioned the evening 
economy and he commented that this was a huge untapped area and 



 
279 

 

linked into so many other opportunities.  He also commented that year 
round tourism was important along with embracing Heritage. 
 
RESOLVED: The update was noted. 
 

RD36:   KING'S LYNN ENTERPRISE PARK AND NORA UPDATE  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
The Assistant Director and Regeneration Programmes Manager 
delivered a presentation providing an overview and update on the 
progress being made at the Nar Ouse Regeneration Area in King’s 
Lynn. 
 
A copy of the presentation is attached which provided detail of the 
history of the site, development to date including residential, 
commercial and the KLIC.  Information was also provided on the 
millennium community and future planned development on the site. 
 
The Assistant Director offered the Panel the opportunity to tour the 
Speculative Units and light industrial units once contractors had 
completed on site. 
 
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director for the presentation and 
invited questions and comments from the Panel, as summarised below. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Crofts it was explained that 
not all of the site had been decontaminated and work was being carried 
out as required during development.  Options were still being 
considered for the proposed Active Travel Hub site which was still 
contaminated. 
 
In response to a further question from Councillor Crofts, the Assistant 
Director explained that contracts had been agreed for some of the 
speculative units and some expressions of interest had been received 
for the light industrial units.  The site had been marketed and the 
Council were in the process of carrying out a rebranding exercise and a 
wider marketing push.  The Regeneration Programmes Manager 
agreed to keep the Panel updated on the marketing of the site. 
 
Councillor Colwell referred to the contamination that remained on site 
and asked if this area could be used as a car park to reduce the costs 
of decontamination.  The Assistant Director explained that the Council 
had to meet the requirements of the regulatory body and consultants 
had been engaged to look at a range of options to deal with the 
contaminated areas. 
 
Councillor Lintern asked if solar panels would be fitted to the industrial 
units and the Assistant Director explained that the Council would work 
with tenants if they wished to install solar panels but the project did not 

https://youtu.be/_feK81ZrDAA?t=1503


 
280 

 

have the Capital available to install panels, especially as it would be 
the tenants that would get the benefit from them.  He commented that it 
would be down to the individual tenants if they wanted to install solar 
panels.  Councillor Lintern commented that the Council should be 
doing more to provide solar panels on industrial units to prevent 
agricultural land being used for solar farms.  The Assistant Director 
referred the Panel to solar panels that had been installed on Council 
owned buildings, for example King’s Court and Lynnsport. 
 
The Chair asked about the gates proposed for Horsley Fields to 
prevent it becoming a rat run for traffic.  The Assistant Director 
explained that the barrier would be accessible to the emergency 
services and there was the option for a plan to be put in place to 
potentially opening it up as an alternative route if required. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Colwell, the Assistant 
Director explained that in terms of residential development, the NORA 
5 site was the last development site available. There had been some 
developer interest in the site and an options appraisal was being 
worked on. 
 
The Chair commented that it was important that any development on 
site considered the potential for future rail links, especially surrounding 
the active travel hub, which was a potential location for the station. 
 
RESOLVED: The update was noted. 
 

RD37:   SOUTHGATES UPDATE  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
The Principal Project Manager and Tom Rudd from BDP consultants 
presented the update to the Panel. 
 
The presentation provided information on the background of the 
project, introduced concept designs for development plots, landscaping 
and public realm.  Information was also provided on consultation and 
engagement going forward. 
 
Tom Rudd from BDP invited comments from the Panel on the design 
concepts. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for the update and invited questions and 
comments from the Panel, as summarised below. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Crofts it was confirmed that 
the Savage Statue was outside of the Masterplan area and would not 
be affected.  It was noted that the plan would note impact heritage 
assets near the site. The Regeneration Programmes Manager 

https://youtu.be/_feK81ZrDAA?t=4023


 
281 

 

commented that interpretation and signage would be used to showcase 
and explain the history and heritage of the area. 
 
Councillor Bubb commented that car parking needed to be provided to 
encourage people to visit Southgates.  Tom Rudd explained that active 
travel to the site would be encouraged and the Regeneration 
Programmes Manager reminded the Panel that the Active Travel Hub 
was proposed to be sited just south of the site which could serve the 
area.  It was also noted that work would be carried out to strengthen 
the route between Boal Quay and Southgates. 
 
The Chair also reminded the Panel of the Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan and the cycle and bus routes which served the area. 
 
Councillor Colwell suggested that the town wall be rebuilt in innovative 
ways and promoted as a heritage asset and walking route.  Tom Rudd 
commented that there were many factors, including archaeology which 
could make this a costly project, however there were innovative 
opportunities available such as tree planting along the route, recreation 
and reinterpretation to tell the story of King’s Lynn. 
 
The Chair commented that it was important that work did not prevent 
future opportunities for showcasing heritage and the town wall. 
 
Councillor Colwell commented that it would be good to reconnect the 
town moat. 
 
The Chair commented that further consideration needed to be given to 
the proposal for affordable housing in the area and that there were 
other uses which could be considered to act as a draw to the area. 
 
RESOLVED: The update was noted and the comments from Members 
would be considered, as appropriate. 
 

RD38:   WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD DECISION LIST  
 

RESOLVED: The Panel’s Work Programme and Cabinet Forward 
Decision List was noted. 
 

RD39:   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 

The next meeting of the Regeneration and Development Panel was 
scheduled to take place on 15th October 2024 at 6.00pm in the Town 
Hall, Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn. 
 

RD40:   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 

https://youtu.be/_feK81ZrDAA?t=6512


 
282 

 

RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act, 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 or 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 
The Panel adjourned for a comfort break from 7.48pm to 7.55pm. 
 

RD41:   EXEMPT - SOUTHGATES UPDATE FROM NORFOLK COUNTY 
COUNCIL  
 

The Panel received information on STARS and the Southgates 
Masterplan from officers from Norfolk County Council.  A copy of the 
presentation had been included in the Agenda and the presentation 
covered the options considered, an update on the STARS project, the 
outline business case and scheme costs.  It was noted that the County 
Council would be considering the proposals at their Cabinet Meeting in 
November and after that a further update could be provided to the 
Panel. 
 
The Chair thanked officers from Norfolk County Council for the update 
and invited questions and comments from the Panel. 
 
Officers from Norfolk County Council responded to questions from the 
Panel relating to the location of cycleways and it was noted that traffic 
modelling work was still ongoing and more information could be 
provided once this had been completed. 
 
The Panel were reminded that the work on STARS related to the 
Southgates and gyratory system and other work coming forward 
relating to car parking and transport would be considered as part of the 
Borough Councils Car Parking Strategy and King’s Lynn Area 
Transport Strategy, both of which would be considered by the 
Regeneration and Development Panel in due course. 
 
RESOLVED: The update was noted. 
 

RD42:   EXEMPT - CABINET REPORT - STRATEGIC LAND ACQUISITION  
 

The Assistant Director presented the Cabinet Report which set out a 
proposed land and property acquisition in King’s Lynn.  The Panel were 
informed that the Chair of the Corporate Performance Panel had 
agreed that, because of the urgent nature of the decision, that it would 
not be available for call-in.  
 
The Assistant Director responded to questions from the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED: The Panel supported the recommendations to Cabinet as 
set out below: 
 



 
283 

 

The acquisition of the property interests set out within this report is 
approved by Cabinet, and that Delegated Authority is given to the 
Assistant Director Property & Projects, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder, to finalise the transaction. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 8.40 pm 
 

 


